Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited

REHAHA(ER)ERLA

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2005

.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands on 20 September 2002 under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman

Islands.

The companies comprising the Group underwent a reorganisation on 2|
June 2003 to rationalise the Group's structure in preparation for the
listing of the shares of the Company on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), pursuant to
which the Company became the holding company of the Group (the

“Group Reorganisation”).

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the development,
manufacture and sale of non-patented chemical medicines including
cephalosporin in bulk medicine and powder for injection, their intermediate
pharmaceuticals and system specific medicines in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors, Fortune United Group Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is the holding company of the

Company.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange on |l July 2003.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board, the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000) except when otherwise

indicated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3| December 2005

p. | BAS'S OF PREPARATlON (Continued)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and all its subsidiaries

have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 3| December 2005.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are

eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the

results and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2005

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2005

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous
financial year except that the Group has adopted those new and revised

standards mandatory for financial years beginning on or after | January

2005.

The changes in accounting policies result from the adoption of the

following new and revised standards:

. IAS |

o IAS 2

. IAS 8

e IAS 10
o IAS 16
e IAS 17
o IAS 21
e IAS 24
o IAS 27
e IAS 32
o IAS 33
e IAS 38
o IAS 39
e IFRS 2
o IFRS 3
e IFRS 5

Presentation of Financial Statements;

Inventories;

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates

and Errors;

Events after the Balance Sheet Date;

Property, Plant and Equipment;

Leases:

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates;

Related Party Disclosures;

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements;

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation;

Earnings per Share;

Intangible Assets;

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement;

Share-based Payment;

Business Combinations; and

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations.
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Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited
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ANNUAL REPORT 2005

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3| December 2005

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The adoption of IASs 2, 8, 10, 16, 17, 21, 24, 27, 32, 33, 38, 39 and IFRSs
3 and 5 has had no material impact on the accounting policies of the
Group and the Company and the methods of computation in the Group's

and the Company’s financial statements.

The impact of adopting the other accounting policies is summarised as

follows:

(a) IAS | — Presentation of Financial Statements

IAS | has affected the presentation of minority interests on the face
of the consolidated balance sheet, consolidated income statement,

consolidated statement of changes in equity and other disclosures.

(b) IFRS 2 — Share-based Payment

In prior years, no recognition and measurement of share-based
payment transactions in which eligible persons (including the
Company's directors, employees of the Group and other eligible
participants) were granted share options over shares in the Company
were required until such options were exercised by eligible persons,
at which time the share capital and share premium were credited

with the proceeds received.

Upon the adoption of IFRS 2, when eligible persons render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“‘equity-settled transactions”),
the cost of the equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which the

instruments are granted.
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Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited

REHAHA(ER)ERLA

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2005

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) IFRS 2 — Share-based Payment (Continued)

The main impact of IFRS 2 on the Group is the recognition of the

cost of these transactions and a corresponding entry to equity for

employee share options. The revised accounting policy for share-

based payment transactions is described in more detail in note 2.4

“Summary of significant accounting policies” below.

The adoption of IFRS 2 required retrospective application of all the

share options granted after 21 June 2003 (date of adoption of the

Company’s Share option scheme) and not vested as at | January

2005, which has resulted in the following:
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Decrease in retained profits 1R 88 S ARk > 4,255 535
Increase in selling and distribution costs HE Mo HE RN 864 923
Increase in administrative expenses TR E IS N 3,182 2,797
Decrease in basic earnings per share g LR 2 R RMBO.005 | RMB0.0046
Decrease in diluted earnings per share P& 5 58 2 KOs RMBO0.005 | RMB0.0046
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23IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE IFRSS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, to these financial statements. Unless
otherwise stated, these IFRSs are effective for annual periods beginning on

or after | January 2006:

IAS | Amendment

IAS 19 Amendment

IAS 21 Amendment

IAS 39 Amendment

IAS 39 Amendment

IAS 39 & IFRS 4
Amendments
IFRSs | & 6
Amendments
IFRS 6
IFRS 7
IFRIC — Int 4
IFRIC = Int 5
IFRIC - Int 6
IFRIC — Int 7
IFRIC — Int 8
IFRIC - Int 9

Capital Disclosures

Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans
and Disclosures
Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast
Intragroup Transactions
The Fair Value Option

Financial Guarantee Contracts

First-time Adoption of IFRSs and Exploration for
and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Exploration for and Evaluation of
Mineral Resources
Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease

Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental
Rehabilitation Funds

Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific
Market — Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment

Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS
29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies

Scope of IFRS 2

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
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23 IMPACT OF

ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE IFRSS (continued)

(@)

IAS | Amendment — Capital Disclosures

This interpretation shall be applied for annual periods beginning on
or after | January 2007. The revised standard will affect the
disclosures about qualitative information about the Group's objective,
policies and processes for managing capital; quantitative data about
what the Company regards as capital; and compliance with any

capital requirements and the consequences of any non-compliance.

IFRIC — Int 4 — Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease

This interpretation requires the determination of whether an
arrangement is, or contains a lease shall be based on the substance

of the arrangement and requires an assessment whether:

(a) fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a

specific asset or assets; and

(b) the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Except as stated above, the Group expects that the adoption of the
other pronouncements listed above will not have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements or not relevant to the

activities of the Group in the period of initial application.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its

activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income statement
to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The Company's
investment interests in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for sale

in accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (ii) has an interest in the Company that gives it significant

influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;
(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred

to in (a) or (d); or

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power in
such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred

to in (d) or (e); or

2005 F & ¥

BF 7% ¥R AR MY 5

—TEAFT=HA=n H

AT ESFREME

Bt B 2 A

BB A B T8 A A B B o A 5 1 1 KL B
BREEREMERLETHDERNER o

B ARMEETED KRS REREE
SIARRAHFBEER - ARBRHE R A
B 1 HE o R AR 15 B R B 55 e 7 B 56 S 55R
Pt m 458 ARFSHE - T 32 A AN R0 AT Rk
EERIIEK

BES

ETHBERT » R HEER/REAKHE
BRE

@ ZFAERBEB—BARSERNY
B (RSIAEE 3 AKEE R
BB AR E Rofh 77 KRIES ()R
RABMER YA HAKEBMNE
REE - RGBT LR ES A S
E

(b) ZHRHEER

3

(0 ZhRBREEE

i3

i}
T

d) ZTRAEEXEGRAANTIEEE
ANBZ—

() ZARB@QKOEBEMMLBEANE R
& sk

(h &N REENXEEBBR ()X ()HEM
AR A PR ) - B Al 5 K R 42 5l 3k e
MERFE IBEFEAREERNE

LR

A
(%



Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited

REHAHA(ER)ERLA

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of

the Group.

Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional
currency rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All
differences are taken to profit or loss with the exception of differences on
foreign currency borrowings that provide a hedge against a net investment
in a foreign entity. These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of
the net investment, at which time they are recognised in profit or loss.
Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those
borrowings are also dealt with in equity. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated

using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currency of the Company, Dawnrays International Co., Ltd.
(“Dawnrays International’”) and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Limited
(Dawnrays Pharma), is the Hong Kong Dollar. As at the reporting date,
the assets and liabilities of these companies are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (RMB) at the exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date and, their income statements are translated at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The exchange differences
arising on the translation are taken directly to a separate component of

equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4 F2ETTHEBE (8
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment ME- -BERZ®

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, excluding the costs of ME - BEREHEIEXEN (TEERER
day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated TERAN) ﬁlf%ﬁﬁéﬁfffﬂ%ﬁ})ﬁkﬁwﬁﬁ 2
impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of such BENTBRENEHERBEHNZDE K
property, plant and equipment when that cost is incurred if the recognition ERRBEERR - MEUEHEERZE
criteria are met. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the EREAFHAREGTRGREETE - B
useful life of the assets, after taking into account its estimated residual ¥ BERXBEFTAICAFHNAT
value. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as

follows:

Buildings 20 years EF 204F
Machinery and other equipment 5to 10 years Mz M Bt R 5% |05
Office equipment 5 years MAERE 5
Motor vehicles 5 vyears T 54
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for M ETMEHRRFEG (L - BRYE
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the B REENERTMERfEEEKE - Ble
carrying values may not be recoverable. BN EEREEAEBEES HEBRE -

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal E—IEDE  BELREEERMEIE
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. RRAEE R am P EFE A gl &5 - BIEUS
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the BR - REUEERZEERE £/ E I
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of @HEE (AREEBEGRIEFHMEZIER M
the asset) is included in the income statement in the year the asset is REENZEZRAE) Dt AZBEEBUEER
derecognised. FREOMERA -

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and ﬂ'ﬁﬁ{gfﬁ N EH%}EH FH R EFEREE
adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end. FEERETRISLEEE BE -

When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the REBRXERBAERE - HEFa @R
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the B ARG ABE REENREEER °

recognition criteria are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

66

POLICIES (Continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under
construction and is stated at cost. The acquisition period of an asset
includes the period when the asset is under construction, installation and
testing. Cost comprises direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when it is completed and
ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided on construction in

progress until the asset is completed and is ready for its intended use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses. Land use rights are amortised on the straight-line basis

over a period of 50 years.

The carrying values of land use rights are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may

not be recoverable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4 FE2EAREBE (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. Following the initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development
costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is charged against profits in the
year in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful lives of intangible
assets of the Group are assessed to be finite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are amortised over the useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may
be impaired. The amortisation period and amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at each financial
year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the assets are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in
the expense category of the income statement consistent with the function

of the intangible assets.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged into the income statement as incurred. An
intangible asset arising from development expenditure on an individual
project is recognised only when the Group can demonstrate the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of
resources to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Following the initial recognition of
the development expenditure, a cost model is applied requiring the asset
to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Any expenditure capitalised is amortised using the
straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products
not exceeding ten years, commencing from the date when the products

are put into commercial production.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Research and development costs (Continued)

The carrying value of development costs is reviewed for impairment
annually when the asset is not yet in use or more frequently when an

indication of impairment arises during the reporting year.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income statement

when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an
estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset's or cash generating unit’s fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Impairment losses are recognised in those expense categories of the

income statement consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4 FE2EAREBE (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal
is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued
amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
After such a reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods
to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on

a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of IAS 39 are classified as either financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and, where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial

year-end.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established

by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
in the near term. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are

recognised in the income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity when the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Investments intended to
be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification.
Other long-term investments that are intended to be held-to-maturity,
such as bonds, are subsequently measured at amortised cost. This cost is
computed as the amount initially recognised minus principal repayments,
plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between the initially recognised amount and the
maturity amount. This calculation includes all fees and points paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums and
discounts. For investments carried at amortised cost, gains and losses are
recognised in income when the investments are derecognised or impaired,

as well as through the amortisation process.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such
assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the loans
and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the

amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets in listed
and unlisted equity securities that are designated as available-for-sale or
are not classified in any of the other three categories. After initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value,
with gains or losses recognised as separate components of equity until the
investment is derecognised or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in

equity is included in the income statement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial
markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the
close of business on the balance sheet date. For investments where there
is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm'’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument, which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing

models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset

or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be
reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account. The

amount of the impairment loss shall be recognised in profit or loss.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and
individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset

does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted
equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a

similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and
condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials Purchase cost on a weighted average basis;

Finished goods and Cost of direct materials and labour and a

work in progress proportion of manufacturing overheads based
on normal operating capacity but excluding

borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount
less allowance for any uncollectible amounts. Provision is made when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the

debts. Bad debts are written off as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheets comprise cash at banks
and on hand and short term deposits with an original maturity of three

months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of

outstanding bank overdrafts.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the

consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

Gains and losses are recognised in net profit or loss when the liabilities

are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of

a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

. the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the asset,
but has assumed an obligation to pay in full without material delay

to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred

control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or
purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on
the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is
the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase,
except in the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option
or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, where the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair

value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability

is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised

in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair
value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services

received, whether or not billed to the Group.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement
is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the
income statement net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time
value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the

passage of time is recognised as a borrowing cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with

the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the Mainland
China (the “Mainland China Subsidiaries™) are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they become payable

in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Accommodation benefits

Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland China are charged

to the income statement as incurred.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants (the Company’s
directors, employees of the Group and other eligible participants) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby eligible participants render services as consideration

for equity instruments (“‘equity-settled transactions”).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible participants is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined using a Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model,
further details of which are given in note 28. In valuing equity-settled
transactions, no account is taken of any performance conditions, other
than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company (“market

conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
eligible participants become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”).
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the cumulative

expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition

is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification, which increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise

beneficial to the participants as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4 FE2EAREBE (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested
on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the
award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted
for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous

paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share

dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Operating leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is
based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of
whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the

asset or assets.

Where the Group is the lessee, operating lease payments are recognised
as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue

is recognised:

ale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership

of the goods have passed to the buyer.

Interest income

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues (using the effective interest
method that is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net

carrying amount of the financial asset).

Dividend income

Revenue is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment

has been established.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account
and is released to the income statement over the expected useful life of

the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4 FE2EAREBE (8)

POLICIES (Continued)

Taxes
Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance

sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,

except:

. where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Taxes (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

c where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred income
tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will

allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the year when the assets are realised or the
liabilities are settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Taxes (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in

equity and not in the income statement.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the

same taxation authority.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheets, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders

and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

There is no significant risk of key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation at the balance sheet date which will cause
an adjustment to carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year.

There are no significant effects on amounts recognised in the financial
statements arising from the judgement or estimates used by management
except for the share option benefit expense which is subject to the
limitations of the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model and the uncertainty
in estimates used by management in the assumptions. The Black-Scholes-
Merton valuation model is modified for the early exercise of share options
in limited open exercise periods. Should the estimates including limited
early exercise behavior, expected interval and frequency of open exercise
periods in the share option life and other relevant parameters of the
share option model be changed, there would be material changes in the
amount of share option benefits recognised in income statement and

employee share option reserve.
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's turnover and profit were mainly derived from the sale of
medicines by the Mainland China Subsidiaries to customers in the Mainland
China. The principal assets employed by the Group are located in the
Mainland China. Accordingly, no segmental analysis by business and

geographical segments is provided.

4. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN

Revenue, which is also the Group'’s turnover, represents the net invoiced

value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gain is as follows:
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Group
rE
2005 2004
—EZRF —EENE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET T ARBF T
Revenue N
Sale of goods HESm 734,002 584,758
Other income H A A
Bank interest income AT F B A 1,032 [,165
Government grant IR T 48 3R 200 50
Dividend income from financial assets at EARERABRRZ
fair value through profit or loss MBEEMNRERA 7 110
Others Hit 712 526
1,951 [,851
Gain Uk 3%
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HERAARBLAEBRERLZ
fair value through profit or loss MBEEM WS 8 105
Total revenue DON L 1,959 1,956
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5. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 5.

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Group
&
2005 2004
—EZ2RF —ZETWFE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
&t AR¥ETT ARBTT
(Restated)
(&5
Cost of inventories sold EEFERE 518,769 392,081
Depreciation e 14 17,408 12,389
Amortisation of land use rights * o b {5 R 4 B 15 306 306
Research and development costs: T KRR
Deferred expenditure amortised ** i T 5 ST g e 17 531 742
Current year expenditure KEEZZH 15910 12,309
16,441 13,051
552,924 417,827
Minimum lease payments under operating leases: RIEEBEHN 2 HEBS ¢
Land and buildings iy R EF 1,279 963
Auditors’ remuneration % BURD B & 1,160 691
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ EERAMAZ (B
remuneration (note 7)): EEMe (Wit7)) -
Wages and salaries IENHS 38,609 32,877
Equity-settled share option expense VA IR 48 2 1) B i PR R B 2 4,046 3,720
Retirement costs RAKEK AR 9 3,173 4,071
Accommodation benefits EE®BF 1,613 2,734
47,441 43,402
Foreign exchange differences, net M 5, % 58 (471) 42
Write-back of provision for bad and doubtful debts R 32 A % {# # [a] (510) =
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value FEREZZIRFE 1,269 —
Fair value losses, net: DR EEEFE
Equity investments at fair value through BAnBLABREKZ
profit or loss FkRERE 190 247
Bank interest income FRATH B A (1,032) (1,165)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BME R
plant and equipment HEEHEBNEE 959 1,427

e The amortisation of land use rights for the year is included in “Administrative

expenses” on the face of the consolidated income statement.

*#%  The amortisation of deferred expenditure for the year is included in “Other

expenses” on the face of the consolidated income statement.

* o R L E R AR G FE R A
[TTEER] -

e B A AR AE S BB ET A B OE B X By [H
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6. FINANCE COSTS
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LURGE-8

Group
&
2005 2004
—ZE2RF —TEMF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Interest on bank loans RITE T B2 202 =

/. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing

= = B

N
i

RIE LR R R R BB 16180 i ER F

Rules and Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance, is as follows: ANREEMES T
Group
wE
2005 2004
S i3 —ZTTMEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T ARET T
Fees ik 298 175
Other emoluments: B HE
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERNMEDA G 3,138 3,677
Employee share option benefits VA RS 7 > < 19 12 B 48 A 461 535
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFTEIHR 68 65
3,667 4,277
3,965 4,452
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7. DlRECTORS, REMUNERATlON (Continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

year were as follows:

2005 F & ¥

BF 7% ¥R AR MY 5

—TEAFT=HA=n H

EEMa &)
Q) BIFHTES
AEEBIFERTEENRSDOT ¢

2005 2004

—EEREF —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARE T

Mr. Pan Xue Tian EEHLE 95 78
Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin Dannis = 95 78
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky BEREAE 95 19
285 |75

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-

executive directors during the year (2004: Nil).

N JE 4 8 S IR A 1T B S A0 L A B
& (ZFTFTNEF : H®) -
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/. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 7. EEME (®)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director b) HITESKR—BFHITES
Salaries
allowances Employee Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind benefits  contributions remuneration
HE o2l HUREXA R
BEe REVNE MNEESEF &Itk WemaE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT AR®TRT ARBTT AR%®TRT ARBTT

2005
Executive directors: WITES
Ms. Li Kei Ling FHRZ L - 456 48 13 517
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERLIE R A - 456 48 I3 517
Mr. Zhang Jing Xing RRELE - 764 104 I3 881
Mr. Lam Kam Wah MR EE K A - 248 52 3 303
(Resigned on (R=—ZZEREF
22 April 2005) mAHZHET)
Mr. Li Tung Ming FRPFKE - 456 73 13 542
Mr. Xu Kehan HRERE - 758 136 I3 907
- 3,138 46| 68 3,667
Non-executive director:  FFHTTEE :
Mr. Leung Hong Man REREESE
(Appointed on | (R—ZEZERF+—
November 2005) A—REZME) 13 - - - 13
13 3,138 46| 68 3,680
2004
Executive directors: WITES -
Ms. Li Kei Ling FHER L - 383 67 I3 463
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERLIE R A - 383 67 13 463
Mr. Zhang Jing Xing RRERAE - 1,283 144 - 1,427
Mr. Lam Kam Wah MBI ST A - 724 90 I3 827
Mr. Li Tung Ming FRALE - 383 101 13 497
Mr. Xu Kehan HRERE - 521 66 I3 600
- 3,677 535 65 4277
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to FARBEESEHNEXRERETAMEH
waive any remuneration during the year. ZHE °
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8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2004:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2004: two)

non-director, highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

2005 F & ¥
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hfusm%EE
ERENGEHEERERE (CETMN
F:ZR)EF BN EXMET - 8
TZA(CTTNS WA HEEREF
EERFRQFMMT :

Group

rE
2005 2004
—ZERF —ZETE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUELREYHNZ 2,131 926
Employee share option benefits AR 2 15 1 1R B 48 A 289 |
Pension scheme contributions RIKE SR 20 26
2,440 953

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration

fell within the following bands is as follows:

MEeE@ENF TINERNFES kRS H
METH AT :

Number of employees

EEAH
2005 2004
—EFRF —EEEE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T Z E#1,000,0007T 3 2
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90

RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND
ACCOMMODATION BENEFITS

In compliance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(the “"MPF Ordinance”), the Company has participated in the MPF scheme,
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee, to
provide retirement benefits to its Hong Kong employees. Contributions to
the MPF scheme are made in accordance with the statutory limits

prescribed by the MPF Ordinance.

As stipulated by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") state
regulations, the Mainland China Subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement scheme. All employees are entitled to an annual
pension equal to a fixed proportion of the average basic salary amount of
the geographical area of their last employment at their retirement date.
The Mainland China Subsidiaries are required to make contributions to
the local social security bureau at 20% to 22.5% (2004: 20% to 22.5%) of
the previous year’s average basic salary amount of the geographical area
where the employees are under employment with the Mainland China
Subsidiaries. The Group has no obligation for the payment of pension

benefits beyond the annual contributions as set out above.

According to relevant rules and regulations of the PRC, the Mainland
China Subsidiaries and their employees are each required to make
contributions to an accommodation fund at 7% to 10% (2004: 7% to
109%) of the salaries and wages of the employees which is administered by
Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre. There is no further
obligation on the part of the Group except for such contributions to the

accommodation fund.

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had no significant obligation apart

from the contributions as stated above.
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—TEaf+-A=+-§

10. TAX 10. I8
Income tax expense Fr & M X W
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 3| HE_ZTMEFR_ZTTRF T A=+
December 2005 and 2004 are: —BILEFEMEHRMOEIZAMKNT
2005 2004
“EEBRF —ETmE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Consolidated income statement CRGEA bR
Current income tax =R FH
Current income tax charge EHMERZ T 2,870 4,851
Adjustments in respect of current income ERABEFEZEHMMEH
tax of previous years H (2,625) 1,374

245 6,225

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had

no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2004: Nil).

According to the Income Tax Law of the PRC, four subsidiaries of the
Company, namely Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou
Dawnrays Pharmaceuticals”), Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical”), Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Dawnrays Technology”) and Shanghai
Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical”), are
exempted from corporate income tax of the PRC for the two years
starting from the first profitable year of operation, after setting off losses
carried forward, and are entitled to a 50% relief from corporate income

tax of the PRC for the following three years.

HRARBERAFEETBY EELRR
Bog - I |t BN SBAE L R (T
TEMEF &) o

REFBEMSHREE  ARFEEFER
KB AR - B#MMNRinREFR QA
([BRMRmEE])  HMNRIRETHERA
A ([# MR T]) -« &N R I B9 & i
BRQE ([#MNRmEM]) & EBRin(E
IARAR(TEERKIEI]) - AEEL
ERNFREEFERRTECRMEHM
F(RBANFEBRR)  TEHER=F
BERERR 2T B EEMSFH50%
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| O TAX (Continued)

Income tax expense (Continued)

Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceuticals is in its fifth profitable year of operation
in 2005 and therefore its applicable income tax rate should have been
129%. However, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceuticals obtained tax approval
from the relevant tax authorities as a qualified foreign-owned
manufacturing enterprise engaging in technology-intensive and knowledge-
intensive projects (“Double-intensive Enterprise”). According to PRC tax
laws and regulations, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceuticals is subject to the
corporate income tax of the PRC at a rate of 7.5% from | January 2003
to 31 December 2005, and at 5% from | January 2006 onwards. Its
status as a Double-intensive Enterprise is subject to periodic reassessment
by the relevant PRC government authorities. The paid-up capital of Suzhou
Dawnrays Pharmaceuticals was increased by US$15,000,000 from
US$10,000,000 to US$25,000,000 in 2004. According to PRC tax laws
and regulations, taxable profits generated in the first two years and the
three years thereafter from the aforesaid additional capital are exempted

from corporate income tax and taxed at a 50% reduced rate respectively.

Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical is in its fourth profitable year of operation,
based on its statutory financial report. It is subject to the corporate
income tax of the PRC at a rate of 12% and local corporate income tax at

a rate of 1.5% from | January 2004 to 31 December 2006.

Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical is in its first profitable year of operation,
based on its statutory financial report. It is exempted from corporate

income tax for the year.

Suzhou Dawnrays Technology had no taxable profits and therefore, no
provision for income tax has been made for the year. On 22 April 2005,
the board of directors of Suzhou Dawnrays Technology passed a resolution

to voluntarily wind up the company (note 18).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3| December 2005

0. TAX (Continued) 10. %/\'% IE\ (#&)

Income tax expense (Continued)

Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained an undertaking from the
Governor-in-Council that no law which is enacted in the Cayman Islands
imposing any tax to be levied on profits or income or gain or appreciation
shall apply to the Company or its operations. The undertaking for the
Company is for a period of 20 years from 8 October 2002. Accordingly,

the Company is not subject to tax.

Pursuant to the International Business Companies Act, 1984 (“IBC Act”)
of the British Virgin Islands, International Business Companies incorporated
pursuant to the IBC Act enjoy a complete exemption from income tax.
This includes an exemption from capital gains tax, and all forms of

withholding tax. Accordingly, Dawnrays International is not subject to tax.

No provision for deferred tax has been made as the net effect of all

temporary differences is immaterial.

FREB < W (&)
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| O TAX (Continued)

Income tax expense (Continued)

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting

profit multiplied by PRC's domestic tax rate for the years ended 31

December 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

— ==

10. ¥ I8 (#)
FRE#XxH (&)

E_TTMFER_TT
— B FEBRIAX N E S FIA S E
AR EWBEHROT

2005 F & ¥

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

EF+ZA=+—H

hE+-_RA=+

2005 2004

—EZ2RF —TEPE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

(Restated)

(B3

Accounting profit before income tax B PTA5 BRI & &5 A 105,949 82,692
At PRC's statutory income tax rate of 33% B EAFE TSR

(2004: 33%) 33%(2004 : 33%) 34,963 27,288

Tax effect of profits entitled to tax exemption AIZERBERRRA G TE (32,226) (22,702)

Adjustments in respect of current income tax FHEBRTFEZEHMEH

of previous years Bk (2,625) 1,374

Non-deductible expenses TR AEMBR BB X 133 265
At the effective income tax rate of 0.2% REBREHTE02%

(2004: 7.5%) (2004 : 7.5%) 245 6,225

I'l.NET PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF % 45 |
THE PARENT
The net profit from ordinary activities attributable to equity holders of the KRR BHREEZZ

parent for the year ended 3| December 2005 dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company, was RMB58, 153,000 (2004: RMB464,000 (as

restated)) (note 29(b)).

+—BHLEFENGARER
BEKMAN A ARESS 153,000 (ZEZ MM

| BRAlEaFBEARGBARR

EERFE+-A=
HRAEAREMHBR

F 0 AR M 464,0007T (B 5 %)) (K7

29(b)) °
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3| December 2005

—TEaf+-A=+-§

12. DIVIDENDS 12, ix &
Company
AN
2005 2004
—Z2RF —TZME
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Declared and paid during the year AEEEERLEZT
Equity dividends on ordinary shares: TmRRE
Final dividend for 2004: HK$0.023 “ETNFERHRE - AH00237T
(2003: HK$0.035) (ZZTZ =% : B¥00357T) 19,543 29,840
Interim dividend for 2005: HK$0.015 —ETRFPRHRE  EB0O0IST
(2004: HK$0.015) (ZZZ M4 : BH00I5T) 12,779 12,760
32,322 42,600
Proposed for approval at Annual 5 IR BRI F K & 8 1A
General Meeting (not recognised as (R+=ZA=+—H
a liability as at 31 December) m KRB E E)
Equity dividends on ordinary shares: TmRRE
Final dividend for 2005: HK$0.035 “ETRFERHRE  AH0035TT
(2004: HK$0.023) (ZZ 24 : H¥00237T) 29,127 19,543
| 3. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. & ix & A
Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for BREARABIERS AR EEARERETEAR
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the ABEREREARRUARFEANEETER
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. BRAR ) 2 IEFHREETE - BER TR
Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net BAICEESRRIEEARERIEA ARBMAGAR
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by FREMIMBRURFAND BT EBEREKRND Z
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the IEFH RS - RN Er st AsEin s
year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be ERmE AR mETTRR Z MEFHRR
issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into HETE -

ordinary shares.
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| 3 EARN'NGS PER SHARE (Continued)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and

diluted earnings per share computations:

——

13. F &R (&)

2005 F & ¥

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

EF+ZA=+—H

MIRRAEAEEREABNNEETRE
P 22 ) B9 U B B B B

2005 2004
—EETLF —TTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARET T
(Restated)
(E3))
Earnings 2w
Net profit attributable to ordinary NEIEBBREDFA A
equity holders of the parent FEAL AB 7 105,646 76,451
2005 2004
—EZ2RF —TEPE
Thousands Thousands
12 iz
Shares gl
Weighted average number of ordinary REHESRERAETR 2 N
shares used in the basic earnings 39 5 AR 3
per share calculation 800,000 800,000
Effect of dilution: BEEE
Share options f=dib g 26 -
Weighted average number of ordinary MEETBELREE 2 NE
shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 19 5 AR B 800,026 800,000
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31 December 2005 —_ZEThFE+TA=T—H
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 4. W% - BE L& H
Group
AEH
Machinery
and other Office Motor
Buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
BEKR
BF Hit:kfE WLAERE RE mm
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTE AR®TRT ARBTRE AR®TT ARBTR

Cost: B
As at | January 2004 R-ZZZWE—-H—H 41,902 86,684 6,095 6952 141,633
Additions NE - 1,029 1,246 2,133 4,408
Transferred from FEIRER

Construction in progress 38,601 38,137 53 - 76,791
Disposals HE (1,230) (1619) (553) (188) (3,590)

As at 3| December 2004 R-ZEENFE+=-A=+—H

and | January 2005 R-ZZEZHEF—-—HA—H 79,273 124,231 6,841 8,897 219,242
Additions NE - 967 698 1,087 2,752
Transferred from FEIRER

Construction in progress 10,180 46,243 562 45| 57,436
Disposals HE (359) (1,187) (450) (1,867) (3,863)
As at 3|1 December 2005 R-_BEREF+=-A=+—H 89,094 170,254 7,651 8,568 275,567
Accumulated REHE

depreciation:

As at | January 2004 RZZETNE—A—H 5297 16,861 2,488 1,073 25719
Provided for the year FERNEE 2,599 7,391 735 664 12,389
Disposals & (303) (972) (492) (115) (1,882)

As at 31 December 2004 RZEZENE+-A=+—H

and | January 2005 F—EEHEF—-H—H 7,593 23,280 2,731 2,622 36,226
Provided for the year FREE 3,009 11,850 1,044 1,505 17,408
Disposals HE (96) (657) (253) (988) (1,994)
As at 3| December 2005 R=-ZZEIF+=-A=+—H 10,506 34,473 3,522 3,139 51,640
Net book value: REF(E
As at 3| December 2005 R=-ZZEIF+=-A=+—H 78,588 135,781 4,129 5,429 223,927
As at 3| December 2004 HRZ-TZEWNF+=A=1+—H 71,680 100,951 4,110 6,275 183,016
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3| December 2005 —ETERFF+_A=+—H
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 4. % - BELKE @)
Company
ANAFE
Office Equipment
WAERME
RMB'000
ARBT T
Cost: AR
As at | January 2004 R-ZZEZEMFE—A—H 652
Additions NE 70
As at 31 December 2004 R-ZZZNFE+_-_A=+—8H 722
and | January 2005 E=—EZERF—H—H
Additions NE |5
As at 31 December 2005 R-ZZBEZRE+=-A=+—H 737
Accumulated depreciation: ZitiE
As at | January 2004 R-ZZEMFE—HA—H =
Provided for the year FRNEE 193
As at 31 December, 2004 R-ZEZENFEF+-_A=+—H 193
and | January 2005 r—EERF—-HF—H
Provided for the year FRNEE 189
As at 3| December, 2005 R-ZZEZEREF+ZA=+—H 382
Net book value: BREFE
As at 31 December 2005 R-ZEZERF+=ZA=+—8H 355
As at 31 December 2004 RZZEZNEF+_H=+—H 529
5. LAND USE RIGHTS |5. &= #b {5 F #&
Group
rEE
2005 2004
—ZERF —ZETNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBETTT
Cost: B
As at | January and 31 December R—A—BETZA=+—H 14,926 14,926
Accumulated amortisation: 2ot -
As at | January m—HA—H 1,109 803
Provided for the year FREE 306 306
As at 31 December R+=—B=+—8H 1,415 1,109
Net book value: BREEE
As at 31 December BR+=—A=+—8 13,511 13,817
As at | January Kn—H—H 13,817 14,123
The land use rights of the Group are situated in Mainland China and are ANEE R 2 8 R AL A R B R BE N
held under medium lease terms. B EEAOFAE -
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—TEaf+-A=+-§

|6. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 6. £ 32 T 7%
Group
rEE
2005 2004
—ZERF —ZETNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR T T
As at | January m—A—H 40,689 57,529
Additions nE 36,308 59,951
Transferred to property, plant BITWE - HEE
and equipment (note 4) Rkt (B ati4) (57,436) (76,79 1)
As at 31 December R+=A=+—H 19,561 40,689
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 7. |\ & E
Group
REE
2005 2004
—ZERF —ZETNWEFE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T
Cost: B
As at | January w—HA—H 15,263 11,647
Additions NE 1,908 3,616
As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 17,171 15,263
Accumulated amortisation: ZEEtEes
As at | January m—H—H 1,602 860
Provided for the year FNEE 531 742
As at 31 December BR+=—A=+-—8 2,133 1,602
Net book value: BREFE
As at 3|1 December R+ZHBA=+—H 15,038 13,661
As at | January m—A—H 13,661 10,787
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| 8. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

2005 F & ¥

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

“EERF+T-_A=1+—H

18. TA BT B A B Y #E &

Company
b NN

2005 2004
—EEHF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR T T
Unlisted shares, at cost IEETRR - A 97,948 100,175
Amounts due from subsidiaries AP NEIRSE 190,881 149,39
288,829 249,566

The amounts due from subsidiaries of RMB190,881,000 (2004:
RMB149,391,000) are non-interest bearing which, although technically are
repayable under the original terms of the transactions giving rise thereto,
have been deferred for a longer term and are therefore classified as non-

current.

100
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| 8. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

2005 F & ¥

BF 7% ¥R AR MY 5

—TEaf+-A=+-§

4

18. MK B A Al Ay #E 2 (#)
TEMBATMEBOT -

Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity
registration of issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations paid-up capital the Group activities
AEf AL 21T,/ REEEM
NCIEY: ENYE—F 3 EHMERA REBDHL FEXEK
Directly held
BEEFE
Dawnrays British US$100 100 Investment
International Virgin Islands holding
Company Limited
RinBEEER A A KBRS 1003 7T BREEK
Indirectly held
B#EFE
Suzhou Dawnrays Mainland China US$25,000,000 100 Manufacture
Pharmaceuticals and sale of
Co., Ltd.* pharmaceutical
Products
BMNRIERERR A A B A 25,000,000 7T RERHE
BEEM
Shanghai Dawnrays Mainland China US$680,000 92 Manufacture
Chemical and sale of
Co., Ltd.* pharmaceutical
intermediates
LBRFICTARRAR hEK B 680,0003 7T RERHE

BEPREE

101



Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited

REHAHA(ER)ERLA

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2005

| 8. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

2005 F & ¥

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

“EERF+T-_A=1+—H

18. M B AR REZR (&)

Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity
registration of issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations paid-up capital the Group activities
AR AL g7,/ REEEM
NCIEE ! o i 2 & 2 B EHMRRA REBD L FEXEK
Suzhou Dawnrays Mainland China US$480,4 13 100 Research and
Pharmaceutical development of
Technology pharmaceutical
(@c%| td.** technology and
products
RN R 3w B AT B IR A R B KB 480,413% 7T it 3% B2 %) Bl
Ko BE dn
Suzhou Dawnrays Mainland China US$3,667,452 100 Manufacture
Chemical and sale of
Co., Ltd.# pharmaceutical

intermediates

FMRIHETHERRA" B A e 36674523 7T RIERHE
BEPHEE
Dawnrays Pharma Hong Kong HK$2 100 Sale of
(Hong Kong) pharmaceutical
Limited products
Rink % (BEB)ERAA e BT 35 & B8 B E o
¥ These subsidiaries were registered under PRC law as foreign-owned enterprises.
g On 22 April 2005, the board of directors of Suzhou Dawnrays Technology passed a resolution to voluntarily wind up the company.

L RENBRARTEVEZEMBIERELF -
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19. INVENTORIES 9. ¥ &
Group
&
2005 2004
—ZE2RF —ETmE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Raw materials — at cost B R — BB 11,929 13,759
Work in progress & m
— at cost — AR 128,585 48,645
— provision — BB (1,036) -
Finished goods BUAL &R
— at cost — AR 20,591 22,362
— provision — BE (233) -
159,836 84,766

20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, except
for new customers, where payment in advance is normally required. The
credit period is generally for a period of one month, extending up to
three months for major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and that the Group's trade receivables relate to a
large number of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration

of credit risk. Trade and notes receivables are non-interest-bearing.

20. B E 5 M EiE KA

BR¥EP —RBAMREN  AEEEE
BEEFAEEPRS - FEH-—RAH
—EBA MEBEFPAANERE=EA -
BUEFPHREBEREERME - AEERK
EERERKEEREFE YREEFES
“*BF‘%%*HMZ?? 2RERK - BRE
BEESTHRITBARZK - ERA LM
AR BHRAEENEKE SRS RKE
TRAEF ARttTESEETHEER
e BUEZREBREBTFTMNE -
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3| December 2005 —EERF+ZRA=1+—H
ZO TRADE AND NOTES RECEl\/ABLES (Continued) 20. ﬁ? J‘l& 573 % & Tﬁé IE (%)
An aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables as at the balance REZAH  REZANEREZRE
sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HIEMERE T ¢
Group
RE
2005 2004
—Z2ERF —EEME
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Trade receivables JEWE 5
Outstanding balances with ages: RERER E|J B M R BREE
Within 90 days 90H A 136,398 119,210
Between 91 and 180 days 91% 180H 10,224 2,932
Between 181 and 270 days 181 F270H 792 |,135
Between 271 and 360 days 271&360H 35 990
Over one year —F 214 199
147,663 124,466
Notes receivables JE UL 2= 1%
Outstanding balances with ages: LERECE 9 Y M R BRER
Within 90 days 90H A 58,498 54,318
Between 91 and 180 days 912 |180H 33,344 57,736
91,842 112,054
Total trade and notes receivables JEWE 5 R EHRFIBEE 239,505 236,520
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts W RIBIREE - (510)
239,505 236,010
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2. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21 AR - 12 e KOCH i 8 IRIR
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
EE AN
2005 2004 2005 2004
—E2EE -~ TIMF  —RFEE  —TTME
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT ARET T ARETT
Tax refund Frig i iR iE = 6,612 - -
Prepayments SCEREN 15,775 7,056 252 -
Deposits and other debtors ¥ & & H b & U BR 3¢ 5,085 2476 173 361
20,860 16,144 425 361
22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE R EBARELABRRZIMBE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 5
AEH LN
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
—E2EE  —TIMF  —RFEE - TTME
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT ARBT T ARETTT
Listed equity investments, EmkERE
at market value: RHE
Hong Kong B 867 598 867 598
The above equity investments at 31 December 2005 were classified as RZZEZRF+A=+—0 " LiRERE
held for trading. DERBIEEERE -
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS VBHRELARESEFED
Group Company
rEH ¥ NN
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EERF —ETENEF —EERF —EEME
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBTT ARET T ARBTT

Cash and bank balances Be MBITHEF 35,666 45,174 1,479 6,444
Short term deposits B HITE R 16,282 53,208 16,282 27,208
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 51,948 98,382 17,761 33,652
At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances and short term REEB  REEBRAAREIENR S R
deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB32,556,000 HRAT 4 17 B2 58 B TF SR AR (B A R 32,556,000
(2004: RMB63,320,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other T(ZEEME: ARM63,3200007T) © A
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control REISWTATEREBREMER - AW
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign RIBFRFBEAEINEESEZRLEERLESE
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other HEEIMINEER  AEEBEFBE
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. ETIINEEBHBRTEARBLRAH
i E % -

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits MITERON BILRBERAFROF &
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between S -RHTHEFRARATF-—BE=EA
one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements TE BAEEMBSFTRKME - WA
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit FER)FE HATE BRTF R KBS H B - IREH
rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate ReSBEYNERERLAEARE -

to their fair values.

106



Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited

REHA(ER)ERLA

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3| December 2005

24. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and notes payables as at the balance sheet

date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2005 F & ¥

BF 7% ¥R AR MY 5

—TEaf+-A=+-§

24. R & 5 M R KA

REZAHE  RNEERNENES RE
NEBEFBERESHTAOT

AE

Group
2005 2004
—Z2ERF —ZETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARETT

Outstanding balances with ages: L AREC E 9 B M R BRER

Within 90 days 90H K 108,795 107,486
Between 91 and 180 days 912 |180H 94,770 126,472
Between 181 and 270 days 181%270H 291 42
Between 271 and 360 days 271 &2 360H 152 41
Over one year —FLAE 252 236
234277

204,260

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-

day terms.

25. INTEREST — BEARING LOANS AND
BORROWINGS

ENFEL TSR —REZA T+ BRE
HIBAT -

B G EEREEE

Effective Group

interest RE
rate (%) Maturity 2005 2004
BERFI=R (%) ZHA —ZTRF —EFmE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT

Bank loans — unsecured On demand

RITER — I 2.16% — 2.41% B E R 17,626 -
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

78

108

2005 F & ¥

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

—TTRf+-A=+-§

26 EtEN AR EETBE

Group Company
r5E NG
2005 2004 2005 2004
“ZE2EF “REQRAF —2%HF “ERETNAF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARETR ARETT
Advance from customers EREMAR 1,757 - - -
Accrued liabilities RN 2,852 241 915 773
Taxes other than corporate income tax B R E AT FHLHM T 5,750 4,778 - -
Payable for purchase of machinery MERER 20,417 27,531 - =
and construction of buildings BFRENENK
Others i 3,334 5976 - -
34,110 38,526 915 773
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average settlement Hih R DA MERTFHREREE
term of six months. Hy o
SHARE CAPITAL 27. IR AR
Shares &)
2005 2004
—EBRF — T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
Authorised: SETE
10,000,000,000 (2004: 10,000,000,000) [ TE (B B ¥ 0.1 T B
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each & 18 A% 10,000,000,000/%
(ZZZM4E : 10,000,000,0000% ) 1,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid:
800,000,000 (2004: 800,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Equivalent to RMB'000

BEITRER
FREAEBEITH
38 A% 800,000,0000%
(ZZZ P94 : 800,000,0000%)

EEARETT

80,000

84,880

80,000

84,880

Share options

Details of the Company's share option scheme and the share options issued

under the scheme are included in note 28 to the financial statements.

B

BRAAR QA B B MR BT 81T
MBI E N M ISR A28 -
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 28. B X % &t 2

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Company’s directors, independent non-
executive directors, employees of the Group and other eligible participants
as defined under the Scheme. The Scheme was adopted on 21| June 2003,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years

from that date.

The maximum number of shares currently permitted to be issued upon
the exercise of options under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
(unless refreshed) which is 80,000,000 shares, which represents 0% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of this annual report.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible person in the Scheme within any |2-month period, is limited to
19 of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval

in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any |2-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in

a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$10 by each grantee with no consideration being payable by the
grantee. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date on or after
the date on which the option is granted as the Board may determine in
granting the option and expiring at the close of business on such date as
the Board may determine in granting the option but in any event shall not

exceed ten years from the date of grant

AARFERAOERETE (518 - B&
BEAEBEBKRRELERMNEGERKS
HERHBERER - FEHNEERKSH
EREARNTRES BUFHTES K
EEEERHFEATHHEMEERS A
BN -_ZTTE=ZFEARNA-_+—8B4E
W BRIERITHEHIEE] - s EIERZB
REFTFERFEER -

\»

\!

BAl RIBFETTEBREM] TETH
EEBRNEE RESRERETEEER
NREE R (B 8RN B BT
19 B 10% + BN80,000,0008% J% 7 + Jn Bl 2N 4
HRETHBARRRIE BEITIRAN0% o EE
REAHBEAR THENELEER2H
ENERENTTETRSRMNDEE - K
ARAFREMEBONEZEITRMD ISR o
RE—FPREBELRENBRE  BXE
R RS BRI E o

BRTYARBIESE  THAHIEZREX
R EEIRAE: 7 R EA S RSBk
MITESHE o Bboh - I RE( 1218 A &
MR TFTARRFTERRXBILIENTES
g EE ST EREEEARA
AR B A E 1T #90.1% - AR
BB AR B0 42 (B (IR IR A2 B RR 1D A BB AR A 52
B BB A B A8 5T &) #8181 5,000,00075 7T + Al
BERTERRERE EIERELE o

EYBERENZZRNERZ A ME218
MRS AR AKABREREAXN
RE HEAXNIETHREAXKE - B
EESEREBREZARERAEED
FHEEEFEERLBRESEEMN A
HiE & R0 A R L - ATRERY (B R 2 fa
TREEARG A MER T F) RIZZaT &
B (R AT e R AR A -
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28 SHARE OPT'ON SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise price of share options is determined by the directors, but

110

may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of

the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; and (ii)

the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the

five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer, provided that

the exercise price shall not be less than the nominal value of the ordinary

shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote

at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during

2005 F & ¥

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

“EERF+T-_A=1+—H

28. BE IR BEET & ()

BRENTEEREFET @ ETEER
UTRENEEE - (AR ARONRLE
RS BRI AATROETE  R3i)A
NRAROREERLBHIOERSBHE
B PP HE - EITEERNS
PRARBEBREOEE -

BRETEETHEATZEEREXNK
RARE LEROEN -

AN R at IR AR T e fE I

the year:
Number of share options Price of Company's shares (¢)
BRREE KAARBERE
Name or Al Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Acdl Date of grant Exercise period ~ Exercise price At immediate Immediately
category of January during during during during December of share options(a) of share options of share date before before the At exercise
participant 2005 the year the year the year(e) the year 2008 (ddimmiyy) (ddimmiyy) options(b) the grant exercise date  date of options
RtgRE Bhe
SR24R R-2%1E 3 Ef R L it R bl BhE RiRE  RERE ikid
EEy) -B-8 BEE B 25He) B fzRIt-B (B/A/9) (8/8/%) k&0 fi-% i-% REER
HKS HKS HKS HK$
it ok it ih
Directors
g2
Ms. Li Kei Ling FERRL 700,000 - - - (700000 ) - T3 111104 - 10f1 107 083 087 NIAMER NATER
Mr, Hung Yung Lai Ly 700000 - - - (700000 ) - T3 1104 - 10711407 08 087 NIRER N ER
MrZnngjngXng  RREZE 1,500,000 - - - (1500000 ) - T3 111104 - 10111107 08 087 NIAER NATER
M. i Tung Ming EF L 1,048,000 - - - (1,048,000 ) - T3 111104 - 10111107 083 087 NATER NATER
Mr. Xu Kehan FEREE 548000 - - - (548000 ) - IO 171104 - 10r1107 08 087 NIVRER NAPER
1,500000 - - - - 1,500,000 TI04 17105 - 1611710 083 062 NATER NATER
2048000 - - - (548000 ) 1500000
Chief Executive Officer
files
Mr. Dong Shao Zni ERERY 2000000 - - - - 2000000 71104 1711105 - 16f11/10 083 062 NAMER NATER
Other emploees(d)
AfEE()
In aggregete a3t 31,936,000 - - (1720000 ) (30216000 - T3 111104 - 10111107 083 087 NAMER NATER
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 171104 17105 -I8/11/10 083 062 NARER NATER
13360000 - - (1700000 ) - 21660000 W04 281205 - 211210 058 059 NARER NATER
56296000 - - (3420000) (30216000 12660000
Other participants
Rbsaz - 4000 - - - 4000 0505105 0505106 - 0405109 030 09 NATER  NATER
§4292000 400000 - (3420000) (34712000 26,560,000
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28 SHARE OPT'ON SCH EME (Continued) 28. E\% Hﬁ Eﬁ; E+ %” (&)

(@) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant () BRENGEBHARLEBHAETEHES
until the commencement of the exercise period. FsmIE -

(b) The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in (b) feETHRET AR KA A B IR AR
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the HIREME LSS - AIERENITE
Company's share capital. B/ATLAGHE o

(¢) The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at immediate date (0 BERTEREN -—XOHARQFKG
before the grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing BERAEERTEREERN —EXR
price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of grant of ZHEHMNBZMBTE REZEBERE
the options. The price of the Company'’s shares disclosed immediately TEBHARENARAIRNERE
before the exercise date of the share options is the weighted average RN EEREBRERNNTE BRETT
of the Stock Exchange closing prices immediately before the dates 55 B HA A A BE 32 AT U (B B9 AN A 5
on which the options were exercised over all of the exercises of E

options within the disclosure line.

(d) Mr. Lam Kam Wah has resigned as an executive director of the (d) MBEEEERZEZERAFHA=_T
Company on 22 April 2005 but remains as the vice president of the “HBAARARARTES B - BD
Company, the share options granted to him are then regrouped EFBARAREEE - UE R T #R5E &
under “Other employees”. WEREEN>BZEHMES] —

Ig o

(e) Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme due to () ENEEBRARYL  BIREBE S
resignation of employees. B SR T DA SRR o

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was RMB50,000. FARTERENDAMEA AR ES50000

JC °©
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28.

SHARE OPT'ON SCHEME (Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was estimated as at
the date of grant, using a Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Such value is inherently subjective and uncertain due to the
assumptions made and the limitation of the valuation model used. The

following table lists the inputs to the model:

Date of grant

28. IR #EE

2005 F & ¥

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

“EERF+T-_A=1+—H

gl (®)

1 LA BR 7 4 0 B R B R At (T A B
FHAEYE BN - SR EEER
- WEE BT EREDERXRE
o EREBBRRAEAOHEEERE
ERS - EREEAS S TR R TR
THEE - TREZER NS A BE:

BB [1/11/2003 17/11/2004 28/12/2004 5/5/2005
Dividend yield (%) M’E=E (%) 496 6.54 7.10 8.4l
Expected volatility (%) 8 HA R 18 (%) 47 46 47
Historical volatility (%) i@ 1K 18 (%) 47 46 47
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3 B AT ER K (%) 2.86 2.76 291 2.90
Expected life of option (year) FERETEETFH (FF) 6 6 4
Weighted average SN 15

share price (HK$) ity B & GBH) 0.53 0.53 0.53 0.53

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the
past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not

necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the

measurement of fair value.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 26,560,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented approximately 3% of
the Company's shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the
remaining share options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 26,560,000 additional ordinary shares of
the Company, additional share capital of HK$2,656,000 and share premium
of HK$ 12,941,800 (before share issue expenses).

BREFEAFHDORBEEE=ZFNELE
BEE  KUEBRTERERENT N -
T8 HA R i 2 Bk 3B 1 R 1R R BUR R R Y
B ERAREBBRLRERER -

THEEME TREEENEEIARARERN

AEE

REZB - AR BIREG 8% A 26,560,000
MBERERRITE  HEXREBERRAFR
BATRDAI3% - RIBARARKFHE AR
B BEITERTERESSIBARRFE
1726,560,000% 58 71 & 3 A% ~ 2,656,000/ TT
B REIMIR AN DA R iR 199 8 1B 12,941,800 7T, (R
SR EBEATR ) ©
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29. RESERVES

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein

for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity on pages 52 to 53 of the financial

statements.

()

(ii)

(iif)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference
between the aggregate of the nominal value of the paid-up
capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation as set out in note |, over the nominal value of

the Company's shares issued in exchange therefor.

Statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
articles of association of the Mainland China Subsidiaries, the
Mainland China Subsidiaries are each required to allocate 10%
of their profit after tax, as determined in accordance with PRC
generally accepted accounting principles, to the SSR until such
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the Mainland
China Subsidiaries. Part of the SSR may be converted to
increase paid-up capital, provided that the remaining balance
after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of the registered

capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The Exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries. It is also used to record the

effect of hedging net investments in foreign operations.

29. fi 1

2005 F & ¥

BF 7% ¥R AR MY 5

—TEAFT=HA=n H

(@ ~&EHE

REBEENAFELBEFENS
EREDHDH NI BHREE2HES3
BEMAHBREEREHRA -

()

(ii)

(iif)

A & #E

AEBNMARBRIEBIERNE P
B K 5 B 5 40 P UK R B B 2 A AD
HBERABEBEERNARRBLR
BARAMBITHARARARMDE
BEHZER -

ZEERBAER
REEFERQRERF EHE R A
MARER  FEMNBAASH
ARPBEARBEHER - GEB
#BE A I0%D REETERBAE
T HEEERERMBAESESS

BB B A A FEf & ARy 50% ° 285
ETEBRBAESEASHERA
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29. RESERVES (Continued)

2005 F & ¥

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

“EERF+T-_A=1+—H

29. i1 (&)

(b) Company (b) 7~ A
Share Share Exchange
premium Contributed option fluctuation Retained
Notes account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
Ej
i3 R EE PN BRERS e REET BE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT
At | January 2004 RZEE@E-A-H
As previously reported PEMER 69,583 100175 - 666 37,124 207,548
Prior year adjustment LEEAR - - 53 - (535) -
As restated Y] 69,583 100,175 535 666 36,589 207,548
Exchange realignment EREE - - - 8l - 8l
Equity-settled share AR (T4
option arrangements BlREZH 28 - - 3720 - - 3720
Net profit for the year AEEFET - - - - 464 464
Interim 2004 dividend “ERMENERE 2 - - - - (12,760) (12,760
Proposed final 2004 HE-TEmE
dividend AERE 12 - - - - (19543) (19543)
At 31 December 2004 RZZEME
T-A=t+-H 69,583 100,175 4255 747 4750 179510
Exchange realignment R HE - - - (6488) . (6488)
Equity-settled share AR A 40
option arrangements BRERH 28 - - 3892 154 . 4046
Cancellation and expiry of  FEHREERA
employee share options Rk 28 - - (6531) - 6531 -
Net profit for the year REEFET - - - - 58,153 58,153
Interim 2005 dividend “ERREPERE 2 - - - - (1,779) (1.779)
Proposed final 2005 HE-Z20%
dividend RERE 2 - - - - (29.127) (29,127)
At 31 December 2005 RZZZRE
t-B=t+-H 69,583 100,175 1,616 (5,587) 27,528 193,315

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the

then consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the

Group Reorganisation, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares

issued in exchange thereof.

RRRHNHANBHRIERESE @Eiﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬁ%

B2 R B A 0 A R E A A A
RAREMAETRTHAL 7&@@@
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30. FINANCIAL  RISK

MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing loans
and cash and short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and

trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are cash flow
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The interest rates of the interest-bearing loans and borrowings of the

Group are disclosed in note 25.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It
is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms
are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad

debts is not significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the
Group, which comprise cash and short term deposits, other receivables
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a

maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties,

there is no requirement for collateral.

Liquidity risk
The Group maintains a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility

through the use of interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

CTEEREERZ

2005 F & ¥

BF 7% ¥R AR MY 5

—TEAFT=HA=n H
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FAEBENSRIANGEEFURBASR
EHTERAE HEZESRMIAEZE®
TERAEENKEERES - %%'K
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REMNERR GFERRETDELR
oA TAESERITLAZEE LA
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31. COMMITMENTS 31, AHE
(@) Operating lease commitments  EXHEEEE
The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating REBBBLCEHEE LY AMESE T
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms NYE - MERENHTHRNF —
ranging from one to seven years. ELF M -
At 31 December 2005, the Group and the Company had total HE_ZZAF+-_A=1+—H =K
future minimum lease rentals payable under non-cancellable operating SERAARBBIITHBELLEHED
leases falling due as follows: RABBEARENRERERBLEN
T
Group Company
EE YN
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EZAHF — T —EBRF — T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARET T ARBTT AR®T T

Within one year — R 1,094 131 469 500

After one year but no —FRE
more than five years % RAF 1,555 1,855 - 438
More than five years AFEMNE 647 971 - -
3,296 3,957 469 938
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3. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 3. % (&)
(b) Capital commitments (b) B A FEIE

Group Company
rEE KRF

2005 2004 2005 2004

—2%IF —TTHF —BFLF & ks

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET AREFT ARBT T ARE T

Contracted, but not provided for. B 7] 47 + BARIERE -

Information system software AERGHE 472 - - =
Land use rights T e P4 4,368 631 - -
Buildings BF 7,425 3,420 - -
Plant and machinery N X 1,553 4,965 - =

13,818 9,016 - =

Authorised, but not contracted for: B - BRETH) ¢
Plant and machinery EVENE TS 23,941 82973 - =

37,759 91,989 — =
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

a) The Group had the following related party transaction during the
p g party g
year ended 3| December 2004:

2005 F & ¥

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

—TTRf+-A=+-§

3LFBETRS

@) AEERBE_ZTEENF+_A=+
—BIFEEHEEUNTHEIRS

Group Company
r&E ARF
2005 2004 2005 2004
“EREE —ZTME ZBRERF —ZTMmE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
fifit ARBET R ARBTT ARET R ARBTT
Recurring transaction: BERS:
Sales of products to a company Al — KB AL 7]
in which a chief executive THRAREREE
of the Company is a BREAF
controlling shareholder HEEM = 3,889 = =

The Company’s chief executive, Mr. Dong Shao Zhi was a director
of LIVZON Pharmaceutical Group Inc.("LIVZON"). The sales
included the transaction with LIVZON from July 2004 (date of Mr.
Dong Shao Zhi's appointment) to 31 December 2004, which were
made according to the published prices and conditions offered to
the major customers of the Group. During the year of 2004, Mr.
Dong Shao Zhi ceased to be the director of LIVZON. Accordingly,
it has not been considered as related party. The Group's trade
balance with LIVZON as at 31 December 2004 amounted to
RMB3,450,000.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

AARITHRAHEREREL ABK
BEHEERGKARAR ([BEK) WE
- HEFTHEE-_ZTZNF LA (B
BEXEEZARE_ZETNF+=
A=+ HHYEEBHKETHRS -
ZERGTERTAEERFERFN
N ERRIGEHEST RZZZEHE
F o OERTEETBECBRHKRES —
B Al BTIHKRAEBER - A&
ER—ZEENF+_A=+—HEWK
BIRME 5 & %iE AR 3450000
5o

by "EBETBEEASHS

2005 2004

—ETHF —TEmE

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBTT

Short-term employee benefits H 52 Hi B B & FI 5,621 4,790

Post-employment benefits RIKETR T 91 78

Share-based payments LARR D AERSZ TR 750 553
Total compensation paid to TEEBAEMSER

key management personnel

6,462 5421

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 7 to the
financial statements.
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33.POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 3B EEREEIE
On 6 January 2006, the Company repurchased its shares of 28,000 shares N_ZEZRF-—AXRA K RATERZ
from the open market at HK$0.50, pursuant to the general mandate of T RAFNA-+_BRRAFRLE LB
repurchase shares passed in Annual General Meeting on 22 April 2005. BHEDRD —RERE  RARAMS L
A& B8 %5 0.507T 8 B £k 28,0008 2 &) Bk
,f/\ °

On 28 March 2006, the Company declared a final dividend for the year PN
ended 31 December 2005 of HK$0.035 per share, which amounted to a oo £¢+ A= +* H JJ:EE* B R
total sum of HK$27,999,020 (equivalent to approximately RMB29,127,000). HIEEASKR B0 A XBE

27,999,0207T (48 & X A K% £929,127,000
7T) °
34. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 34 LB F
As further explained in note 2 to the financial statements, due to the SANET B AR M SR 2P E RO 2 — 2P AR -
adoption of new IASs and IFRSs during the current year, the accounting RANF E R AT R = 522 R & B BR B
treatment and presentation of certain items and balances in the financial BHEER - BB mEkTETER RER
statements have been revised to comply with the new requirements. VEHEEARANEIN AR ERITIEE
Accordingly, certain prior year and opening balance adjustments have FTLMER] - Bt - XF REIAF B4 &
been made and certain comparative amounts have been reclassified/ KEELAE - me THREED TEH
restated to conform with the current year's presentation and accounting DEEY  NEAFENZIAARE
treatment. ETREBAN B

35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 35. BF 1% ¥ & BV #E &

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the MBREERZZET S
board of directors on 28 March 2006. EEgHEREER

NEZAZF+NBE
%
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